
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

February 6, 2018   9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Jeff Yawn 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Presentation of the Arbor Day proclamation 
B) Recognition of the City's participation in the Tree City USA program. 
C) Presentation of Employee Years of Service Awards 

 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 

 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 01-16-2018 Council Minutes 

 
6. Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2018-04  A Resolution Appointing Rose 

Bonner to the City of Statesboro Tree Board. 
 

7. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-05: A Resolution 
to appoint Molly Bickerton, Tiffoni Buckle-McCartney, Trent Davis, Alex Harris, 
Margaret Hudson, Jennifer Paddock and Laura Wheaton to the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch 
Beautiful Board of Directors for a one-year term. 

 
8. Consideration of a Motion to award the purchase of eight (8) Ford Police Interceptor 

SUV's (Police Patrol and Operations Bureau's) from Wade Ford per the Georgia State 
Contract in the amount of $228,896.00, the cost includes an extended warranty (7 Year/ 
100,000 miles).  The funding from this purchase comes from the GEMA Lease Pool and 
will be repaid by the funds budgeted in the FY 2013 SPLOST.  

 
9. Consideration of a Motion to award the purchase of 1 Ford F-150 pickup (Police 

Operations Bureau) to  Allan Vigil Ford per the Georgia State Contract in the amount of 
$31,917.00,  the cost includes an extended warranty (7 Year/ 100,000 miles).  The 
funding from this purchase comes from the GEMA Lease Pool and will be repaid by the 
funds budgeted in the FY 2013 SPLOST.  

 
10. Consideration of a Motion to award the purchase equipment and up-fitting of 7 Ford 

Police Interceptor SUVs and additional equipment for two (2) Ford Vehicles (Interceptor 
SUV and F-150) to West Chatham Warning Devices, total cost not to exceed 
$139,187.00.  The funding from this purchase comes from the GEMA Lease Pool and 
will be repaid by the funds budgeted in the FY 2013 SPLOST.  
 



 
 

11. Other Business from City Council 
 

12. City Managers Comments 
 

13. Public Comments (General) 
 

14. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Potential 
Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 

 
15. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 

A Proclamation by the Mayor and  

City Council of Statesboro, Georgia 
   

ARBOR DAY 
 
WHEREAS, In 1872, J Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of  

Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and 
 
WHEREAS, The holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting 

of more than a million trees in Nebraska, and 
 
WHEREAS,  Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees can reduce the erosion of our topsoil by wind and water, lower 

our heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce oxygen 
and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

 
WHEREAS, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, 

fuel for our fires and countless other wood products, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees in our City increase property values, enhance the economic 

vitality of business areas, and beautify our community, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual 

renewal, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Jonathan McCollar, Mayor of the City of Statesboro, do hereby 
                                     proclaim February 15, 2018 as 
 

ARBOR DAY 
                         

 in the City of Statesboro, and I urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support   efforts to 
protect our trees and woodlands, and 

 
FURTHER, I urge all citizens to plant and care for trees to gladden the heart and 

promote the well-being of this and future generations. 
 
 

Dated this 6th day of February in the year 2018 
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                _____________________ 

                                                                                             Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 
January 16, 2018 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on January 16th, 2018 at 5:30p.m. in 
the Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jonathan McCollar, Council Members: 
Phil Boyum, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn, John Riggs and Travis Chance.  Also present were City 
Manager Randy Wetmore, Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling and 
City Attorney Cain Smith.      
The Meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar. 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Sam Lee Jones 
 
 Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
     a) 01-02-2018 Council Minutes 

 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to approve the consent 
agenda. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # CUV 18-01-
01: Niki H. Grant requests a conditional use variance from Article II Section 201 for .34 
acres of property located at 402 Marvin Avenue to utilize the property as a youth group 
home for up to six (6) children in the R15 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district (Tax 
Parcel S44 000008 000). 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
Sharon Hill, co-owner of the business, spoke in favor of the request. 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion with conditions from staff, seconded by Councilman Riggs to 
approve APPLICATION # CUV 18-01-01: Niki H. Grant requests a conditional use variance 
from Article II Section 201 for .34 acres of property located at 402 Marvin Avenue to utilize the 
property as a youth group home for up to six (6) children in the R15 (Single-Family Residential) 
zoning district (Tax Parcel S44 000008 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 



 
 

 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # RZ 18-01-
09: L&S Acquisitions and CFN Partners, LLC request a zoning map amendment of a 
proposed subdivision of 6.8 acres of a 60.92 acre parcel located at Josh Hagin Road from 
the R8 (Single-Family Residential) and R10 (Single-Family Residential) zoning districts to 
the CR (Commercial Retail) zoning district to permit new retail construction (Tax Parcel 
107 000009 000).  
 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
No one was present to speak for or against the request. 
Director of Planning and Development Frank Neal stated the applicant asked for the request to 
be tabled until a later date. 
Councilman Travis made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to table the item until a 
later date. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. 
The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # RZ 18-01-
10: Mary J. Smith requests a zoning map amendment of .28 acres of property located at 
220 South Zetterower Avenue from the R15 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district to 
the O (Office and Business Office District) zoning district to operate a professional office 
(Tax Parcel S30 000077 000). 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to deny APPLICATION # 
RZ 18-01-10: Mary J. Smith requests a zoning map amendment of .28 acres of property located 
at 220 South Zetterower Avenue from the R15 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district to the 
O (Office and Business Office District) zoning district to operate a professional office (Tax 
Parcel S30 000077 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of 
the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-02: 
Pete Williams requests a variance from Article VII Section 703(B)(3) to reduce the 
required front yard setback to construct a high-density residential development on a 
proposed combination of parcels located at 101 Broad Street and 105 Broad Street (Tax 
Parcels S29 000070 000 and S29 000071 000).  
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-03: 
Pete Williams requests a variance from Article VII Section 703(B)(2) regarding the 
maximum number of dwelling units allowed to construct a high-density residential 
development on a proposed combination of parcels located at 101 Broad Street and 105 
Broad Street (Tax Parcels S29 000070 000 and S29 000071 000). 
 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to open the public hearing 
for applications V-18-01-02 and V 18-01-03. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
Pete Williams and Attorney Steve Rushing spoke in favor of the request. 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to close the public hearing 
for applications V-18-01-02 and V 18-01-03. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve 
APPLICATION # V 18-01-02: Pete Williams requests a variance from Article VII Section 
703(B)(3) to reduce the required front yard setback to construct a high-density residential 
development on a proposed combination of parcels located at 101 Broad Street and 105 Broad 
Street (Tax Parcels S29 000070 000 and S29 000071 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, 
Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve APPLICATION 
# V 18-01-03: Pete Williams requests a variance from Article VII Section 703(B)(2) regarding 
the maximum number of dwelling units allowed to construct a high-density residential 
development on a proposed combination of parcels located at 101 Broad Street and 105 Broad 
Street (Tax Parcels S29 000070 000 and S29 000071 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, 
Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # RZ 18-01-
08: Josh Whitfield requests a zoning map amendment for a proposed combination of 
parcels addressed 91 South College Street and South College Street from the LI (Light 
Industrial) zoning district to the CBD (Central Business District) zoning district to permit 
the construction of a mixed-use development (Tax Parcels S19 000002 000 and S19 000001 
000). 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-06: 
Josh Whitfield requests a variance from Article XII Section 1214 to reduce the minimum 
required building setback and parking lot setback when a LI (Light Industrial) parcel 
abuts a residential district (Tax Parcels S19 000002 000 and S19 000001 000). 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-07: 
Josh Whitfield requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) regarding the 
maximum height and square footage allowed for a freestanding sign (Tax Parcels S19 
000002 000 and S19 000001 000). 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-04: 
Josh Whitfield requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) regarding the 
maximum height and square footage allowed for a freestanding sign (Tax Parcels S19 
000002 000 and S19 000001 000). 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to open the public hearing 
for applications RZ 18-01-08, V 18-01-06, V 18-01-07 and V 18-01-04. Councilman Boyum, 
Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
Josh Whitfield and John Dotson spoke in favor of the motion. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to close the public hearing 
for applications RZ 18-01-08, V 18-01-06, V 18-01-07 and V 18-01-04. Councilman Boyum, 
Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion to include staff recommendations, seconded by Councilman 
Yawn to approve APPLICATION # RZ 18-01-08: Josh Whitfield requests a zoning map 
amendment for a proposed combination of parcels addressed 91 South College Street and South 
College Street from the LI (Light Industrial) zoning district to the CBD (Central Business 
District) zoning district to permit the construction of a mixed-use development (Tax Parcels S19 
000002 000 and S19 000001 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted 
in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion to include staff recommendations, seconded by Councilman 
Chance to approve APPLICATION # V 18-01-06: Josh Whitfield requests a variance from 
Article XII Section 1214 to reduce the minimum required building setback and parking lot 
setback when a LI (Light Industrial) parcel abuts a residential district (Tax Parcels S19 000002 
000 and S19 000001 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor 
of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion to include staff recommendations, seconded by Councilman 
Chance to approve APPLICATION # V 18-01-07: Josh Whitfield requests a variance from 
Article XV Section 1509(C) regarding the maximum height and square footage allowed for a 
freestanding sign (Tax Parcels S19 000002 000 and S19 000001 000). Councilman Boyum, 
Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion to include staff recommendations, seconded by Councilman 
Boyum to approve APPLICATION # V 18-01-04: Josh Whitfield requests a variance from 
Article XV Section 1509(C) regarding the maximum height and square footage allowed for a 
freestanding sign (Tax Parcels S19 000002 000 and S19 000001 000). Councilman Boyum, 
Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-13: 
Alan Gross requests a variance from Article VI Section 603(C)(1) to reduce the minimum 
required lot area from 36,000 square feet to 19,130 square feet to construct three (3) two-
family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-11: 
Alan Gross requests a variance from Article VI Section 603(C)(2) to reduce the minimum 
required front yard setback for .46 acres of property located at 127 Institute Street to 
construct three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-15: 
Alan Gross requests a variance from Article VI Section 603(C)(3)(a) to reduce the 
minimum required side yard setback for .46 acres of property located at 127 Institute 
Street to construct three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-12: 
Alan Gross requests a variance from Article VI Section 603(C)(4) to reduce the minimum 
required rear yard setback for .46 acres of property located at 127 Institute Street to 
construct three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 18-01-14: 
Alan Gross requests a variance from Article XXII Section 2203.1(B)(1) to reduce the 
minimum required dwelling size from 1,500 square feet to 1,355 square feet per building 
for three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing 
for applications V 18-01-13, V 18-01-11, V18-01-15, V18-01-12 and V 18-01-14. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 
5-0 vote. 
Alan Gross spoke in favor of the motion. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to close the public hearing 
for applications V 18-01-13, V 18-01-11, V18-01-15, V18-01-12, and V 18-01-14. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 
5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion to include sidewalks, seconded by Councilman Jones to 
approve APPLICATION # V 18-01-13: Alan Gross requests a variance from Article VI Section 
603(C)(1) to reduce the minimum required lot area from 36,000 square feet to 19,130 square feet 
to construct three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). Councilman Boyum, 
Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve 
APPLICATION # V 18-01-11: Alan Gross requests a variance from Article VI Section 
603(C)(2) to reduce the minimum required front yard setback for .46 acres of property located at 
127 Institute Street to construct three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 



 
 

 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve 
APPLICATION # V 18-01-15: Alan Gross requests a variance from Article VI Section 
603(C)(3)(a) to reduce the minimum required side yard setback for .46 acres of property located 
at 127 Institute Street to construct three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve 
APPLICATION # V 18-01-12: Alan Gross requests a variance from Article VI Section 
603(C)(4) to reduce the minimum required rear yard setback for .46 acres of property located at 
127 Institute Street to construct three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve 
APPLICATION # V 18-01-14: Alan Gross requests a variance from Article XXII Section 
2203.1(B)(1) to reduce the minimum required dwelling size from 1,500 square feet to 1,355 
square feet per building for three (3) two-family duplexes (Tax Parcel S19 000109 000). 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote 
 
Consideration of a motion to nominate and appoint one member to the TAD Advisory 
Committee. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to appoint Scott 
Marchbanks as a member of the TAD Advisory Committee. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, 
Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a motion to approve the TSPLOST Intergovernmental Agreement 
between Bulloch County and the City of Statesboro. 
  
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve the TSPLOST 
Intergovernmental Agreement between Bulloch County and the City of Statesboro. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 
5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion  to adopt Resolution 2018-03: A Resolution appointing the 
Director of Public Utilities, Steve Hotchkiss, as the Project Superintendent for the 2010 
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to adopt Resolution 2018-
03: A Resolution appointing the Director of Public Utilities, Steve Hotchkiss, as the Project 
Superintendent for the 2010 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds. Councilman Boyum, Jones, 
Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 



 
 

 
Other Business from City Council   
 
Mayor McCollar commended Mr. Whitfield on his project. He also stated that Council members 
would have the opportunity to appoint one member each to the commissions that he is creating 
for the City.  
 
City Managers Comments: None 
 
Public Comments (General): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 pm. 
 



 
 

 
Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
  
 
 
    
To:   Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
 
From:  Jason Boyles, Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 
Date:  1/29/18 
 
RE:  Statesboro Tree Board Member Approval 
 
Policy Issue:  Tree Board Request 
 
Recommendation:  
Consideration of a motion to appoint Rose Bonner to the Statesboro Tree Board. 
 
Background:  
The Statesboro Tree Board currently has a vacancy after the passing of Mr. John 
Karrh on December 5, 2017.  The Board has received an application from Rose 
Bonner to serve on the Board in this vacancy.  Ms. Bonner is a certified arborist 
and formerly worked with the City of Statesboro in the Streets Division where one 
of her duties was assisting the Streets & Parks Superintendent with Statesboro 
Tree Board meetings. 
 
The Board has approved her application and recommends approval of this 
appointment to the City of Statesboro City Council.  Ms. Bonner will complete 
the term that was vacated by Dr. John Karrh and she will serve until the end of 
the next term in June 2021. 
 
Budget Impact:   
None 

Council Person and District: 
N/A (citywide) 
 
Attachments: 
Arbor Day Proclamation 



RESOLUTION 2018-04: A RESOLUTION APPOINTING ROSE BONNER TO THE TREE BOARD OF 
THE CITY OF STATESBORO 

 
WHEREAS, Section 86-81 of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances establishes the 
“Creation and establishment of a city tree board”; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to exercise the appointment power provided 
in the ordinance above; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree and affirm that Rose Bonner has the expertise 
and character that would be beneficial to the Tree Board of the City of Statesboro in discharging 
its responsibilities; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia, as follows: 
 

Section 1. That Rose Bonner is hereby appointed to the Tree Board of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia for the remainder of the current term vacated by Dr. John Kahhr 
and expiring in June 2018. 
 
Section 2. That Rose Bonner is hereby appointed to the Tree Board of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia for a 3 year term on the Tree Board beginning June 2018 and 
ending in June 2021.  
 
Section 3. That this resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of 
adoption.  

 
 
Adopted this 6th day of February, 2018. 
 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
____________________________________  
By: Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 















































































RESOLUTION 2018-05 

APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE KEEP STATESBORO-BULLOCH BEAUTIFUL ADVISORY BOARD 

WHEREAS, Section 2.1 of Article 2 of the bylaws of the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Commission states 
that membership of the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Commission Board of Directors shall consist of 
seven members who shall be appointed by the governing body. The appointment of members of the Keep 
Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Commission Board of Directors upon the effective date of this division shall be 
as follows: 

(1) Posts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 shall be appointed for terms of one year. 
 

Each successor appointed to the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Commission Board of Directors thereafter 
shall be appointed for a term of three years; and 

WHEREAS, Molly Bickerton, Tiffoni Buckle-McCartney, Trent Davis, Alex Harris, Margaret Hudson, Jennifer 
Paddock and Laura Wheaton have made application for volunteer service to the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch 
Beautiful Commission Board of Directors to the City of Statesboro; and 

WHEREAS, there are currently a vacancies in Posts 1 through 7; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to exercise the appointment power provided above; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree and affirm that the applicants meet the qualifications of the City 
of Statesboro for service on the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Commission Board of Directors and that 
the applicants have both the knowledge and the character that that will be beneficial to the Keep Statesboro-
Bulloch Beautiful Commission Board of Directors in discharging its responsibilities; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia as 
follows: 

Section 1. That Molly Bickerton, Tiffoni Buckle-McCartney, Trent Davis, Alex Harris, Margaret Hudson, 
Jennifer Paddock and Laura Wheaton are hereby appointed to the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful 
Commission Board of Directors each for one (1) year terms. 

Section 2.  That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of adoption. 

Adopted this 6th  day of February 2018. 

 
______________________________ 
Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 
 

Attested by: 
________________________ 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 






	02-06-2018 Council Agenda
	02-2018 proclamation Arbor Day
	01-16-2018 Council minutes
	02-2018-04 Statesboro Tree Board Rose Bonner Appointment Memo (2)
	02-2018-04 Tree Board Appointment Rose Bonner Resolution
	02-2018-04 Rose Bonner Tree Board application
	02-2018-05 members applications
	02-2018-05 Appointment RESOLUTION 2018 KSBB Board of Directors
	02-2018 Police Memo

